NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 8™ Annual General Meeting of Welspun Captive Power
Generation Limited will be held on Tuesday, August 14, 2018 at the Registered Office of the
Company at Welspun City, Village Versamedi, Taluka Anjar, Dist. Kutch, Gujarat — 370 110 at
03.30 p.m. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company as at March 31, 2018
along with the Reports thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Atul Wahi (DIN: 07558176), who retires by rotation,
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 3(7) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force) and based on the approval of the Board, the appointment of SR B C
& CO LLP (having Firm Registration Number 324982E/E300003), as the statutory auditors of
the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this i.e. 8" Annual General Meeting until
the conclusion of the 12" Annual General Meeting be and is hereby ratified by the members
of the Company on such remuneration as may be determined by the Board of Directors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution

as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
(including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force),
M/s. Kiran J. Mehta & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000025), appointed as
the Cost Auditors of the Company by the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee of the Board, to conduct the cost audit for the financial year ending March
31, 2019, be paid a remuneration of Rs. 125,000/~ (Rupees One Lakh Twenty Five Thousand
Only) and such travelling and out-of-pocket expenses, at actual incurred, if any, in connection
with the audit, as may be authorized by the Board.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution
as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, 161 and other
applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (“Rules”) read with Schedule 1V of



the Act and other applicable rules made pursuant to the Act (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and any other law for the
time being in force, if applicable, Ms. Mala Todarwal (DIN 06933515), who was appointed as
an additional director (independent) with effect from July 23, 2018 by the Board of Directors
of the Company and who holds office as such upto the date of this Annual General Meeting
and who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for independence as prescribed
under Section 149 of the Act and who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing from a member proposing her candidature for the
office of director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to
hold office for a term of five years i.e. upto July 22, 2023 and whose office shall not be liable
to retire by rotation.”

By Order of the Board
For Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited

Place: Mumbai ashikant Thorat
Date: July 23, 2018 Company Secretary
FCS - 6505

Registered Office:

Welspun City, Village Versamedi,

Taluka Anjar, District Kutch, Gujarat — 370110

Tel. No.: +91 2836 661111, Fax No.: +91 2836 279010
CIN: U40100GJ2010PLC060502

Website: hitp://www.welspuncaptivepower.com/
Email: Companysecretary WIL(@welspun.com




NOTES

L.

10.

A statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in respect of the
special business under Item Nos. 4 to 5 of the Notice is annexed hereto.

In terms of Section 152 of the Act, Mr. Atul Wahi (DIN 07558176), Director, retires by
rotation at the Meeting and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment. In terms of
Sections 149, 150, 152, 161 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, Ms. Mala Todarwal (DIN 06933515) have been confirmed by the Board of
Directors as an Independent Director of the Company and in terms of Sections 149, 152, 161
and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, accordingly, a
brief resume of Mr. Atul Wahi and Ms. Mala Todarwal is provided as Annexure — 1 forming
part of the Notice.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT
ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND
A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Proxy forms, in order to
be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

Proxy shall not have the right to speak and shall not be entitled to vote except on a poll.

A proxy can act on behalf of such number of member or members not exceeding 50 and
holding in aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. Provided that a member holding more than 10%, of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy for his entire
shareholding and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder.

An instrument of proxy is valid only if it is properly stamped as per the applicable law.
Unstamped or inadequately stamped proxies or proxies upon which the stamps have not been
cancelled are invalid.

The proxy-holder shall prove his identity at the time of attending the Meeting.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting
are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution in terms of Section 113 of
the Act, together with their specimen signatures authorizing their representative(s) to attend
and vote on their behalf at the Meeting, to the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent.

A proxy form which does not state the name of the proxy shall not be considered valid.
Undated proxy shall not be considered valid and if the Company receives multiple proxies for
the same holdings of a Member, the proxy which is dated last shall be considered valid. If
they are not dated or bear the same date without specific mention of time, all such multiple
proxies shall be treated as invalid.

When a Member appoints a proxy and both the member and proxy attend the Meeting, the
proxy stands automatically revoked.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their DP ID and
Client ID number(s) and those who hold share(s) in physical form are requested to write their
Folio Number(s) in the attendance slip for attending the Meeting to facilitate identification of
membership at the Meeting.

All the correspondence pertaining to shareholding, transfer of shares, transmission etc. should
be lodged at the Company's Registrar and Transfer Agents: Purva Sharegistry (India) Private
Ltd., Unit: Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited, 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt. ].R. Boricha
Marg, Opp. Kasturba Hospital Lane, Lower Parel (E), Mumbai — 400 011. Tel. No. 022-2301
6761, 022-2301 8261, Fax No. 022-2301 2517, email- busicomp@vsnl.com., website -
www.purvashare.com.

Members are requested to immediately inform about their change of address, change of e-
mail address, if any, to the Company's Share Transfer Agent.

The physical copies of the Annual Reports and other documents referred to in the Notice will
be available at the Company’s Registered Office for inspection during normal business hours
on working days till the date of the meeting.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholdings, maintained
under Section 170 of the Act, will be available for inspection by the Members at the Meeting.

The Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained
under Section 189 of the Act, will be available for inspection by the Members at the Meeting.

The shareholders who wish to nominate any person to whom his securities shall vest in the
event of his death may do so by submitting the attached Nomination Form to the Company or
the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company. A nomination may be cancelled, or varied
by nominating any other person in place of the present nominee, by the holder of securities
who has made the nomination, by giving a notice of such cancellation or variation.

By Order of the Board
For Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited

Place: Mumbai Shashikant Thorat
Date: July 23, 2018 Company Secretary

FCS - 6505

Registered Office:

Welspun City, Village Versamedi,

Taluka Anjar, District Kutch, Gujarat - 370110

Tel. No.: +91 2836 661111, Fax No.: +91 2836 279010
CIN: U40100GJ2010PLC060502

Website: hitp://www.welspuncaptivepower.com/
Email: Companysecretary WIL@welspun.com




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 4 - Ratification of remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors

In pursuance of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Board based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee of the Board appointed M/s. Kiran J. Mchta & Co., Cost
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000025) as the Cost Auditors of the Company, for the
conduct of the Cost Audit of the Company’s various manufacturing units for the financial year
2018-19 on a remuneration of Rs. 125,000 (Rupees One Lakh Twenty Five Thousand Only) plus
travelling and out of pocket expenses, at actual incurred, if any, in connection with the audit of
the Company. Remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders.

None of the directors or the key managerial personnel of the Company or their relatives may be
deemed to be concerned or interested in this resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 4 for the approval of the members.

Item No. 5 - Appointment of Ms. Mala Todarwal as an Independent Director of the
Company

Ms. Mala Todarwal is a non-executive independent director of the Company. She joined the
Board of Directors of the Company in July 23, 2018. Ms. Todarwal is a qualified Chartered
Accountant with over 5 years post qualification experience of practice in CA profession as a
partner of M/s. Todarwal & Todarwal, Chartered Accountants. She has experience in: (i) Audit
Assurance (ii) Due Dilligence (iii) Corporate Restructuring and Transaction Advisory.

In terms of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms.
Todarwal being eligible and offering herself for appointment is proposed to be appointed as an
independent director for five consecutive years for a term upto July 22, 2023. A notice has been
received from a member proposing Ms. Todarwal as a candidate for the office of director of the
Company.

In the opinion of the Board, she fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made thereunder for her appointment as an independent director of the Company and that
she is independent of the management. Copy of the draft letter of appointment of Ms. Todarwal as
an independent director setting out the terms and conditions would be available for inspection
without any fee by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business
hours on any working day.

The Board considers that her continued association would benefit the Company and it is therefore
desirable to continue to avail services of Ms. Todarwal as an independent director. The Board
recommends the resolution in relation to appointment of Ms. Todarwal as an independent
director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.



Except Ms. Todarwal, being an appointee, none of the directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said
resolution.

By Order of the Board
/FW pun Captive Power Generation Limited
Place: Mumbai (_Shashikant Thorat
Date: July 23, 2018 Company Secretary
FCS - 6505

Registered Office:

Welspun City, Village Versamedi,

Taluka Anjar, District Kutch, Gujarat - 370110

Tel. No.: +91 2836 661111, Fax No.: +91 2836 279010
CIN: U40100GJ2010PLC060502

Website: http://www, welspuncaptivepower.com/
Email: Companysecretary WILE@welspun.com




Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment in the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting pursuant to the Secretarial Standards ~ 2 on General Meeting

Annexure 1

Mr. Atul Wahi

Name Atul Wahi

Date of Birth October 23, 1956
Date of Appointment October 14, 2016
Qualifications Civil Engineer

Nature of his expertise in specific functional areas

Mr. Wahi is a Civil Engineer by profession and has
served 30 years at Civil Regiment of Indian Army.
He is responsible for handling of central
administration of Welspun Group companies at
Anjar along with execution of C5R activities and
various project activities.

Disclosure of relationships with other Directors
and Key Managerial Personnel

None

Names of companies in which the person also
holds the directorship

Welassure Private Limited

Names of companies and committees, of its Boards, | NIL
in which the person holds membership
No. of shares held in the Company NIL

No. of Board meetings attended

Refer of the Directors’ Report, 2017-18

Ms. Mala Todarwal

Name Mala Todarwal

Date of Birth May 03, 1985

Date of Appointment July 23, 2018
Qualifications Chartered Accountant

Nature of his expertise in specific functional areas

Ms. Todarwal is a qualified Chartered Accountant
with over 5 years post qualification experience of
practice in CA profession as a pariner of M/s.
Todarwal & Todarwal, Chartered Accountants. She
has experfence in: (I) Audit Assurance (ii) Due
Dilligence (iii) Corporate Restructuring and
Transaction Advisory.

Disclosure of relationships with other Directors
and Key Managerial Personnel

None

Names of companies in which the person also
holds the directorship

Welspun Investment and Commercial Limited,
AYM Syntex Limited, Welspun Enterprises
Limited, Talwandi Sabe Power Limited, welspun
Natural Resources Private Limited, ARSS Bus
Terminal Private Limited.

Names of companies and committees, of its Boards, | NIL
in which the person holds membership
No. of shares held in the Company NIL

No. of Board meetings attended

NIL during the financial year 2017-18




Form No. SH-13
Nomination Form
(Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014)

To,

The Company Secretary,

Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited
Welspun City, Village Versamedi,

Taluka Anjar, Dist. Kutch,

Gujarat, Pin— 370110.

I/ We the holder(s) of the securities particulars
of which are given hereunder wish to make nomination and do hereby nominate the following

persons in whom shall vest, all the rights in respect of such securities in the event of my/our
death.

1. PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in respect of which nomination is being made)

Nature of | Folio No. No. of | Certificate No. | Distinctive No.
securities Securities

2. PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE/S —
(a) Name:
(b) Date of Birth:
(c) Father’s/Mother’s/Spouse’s name:
(d) Occupation:
(e) Nationality:
3] Address:
() E-mail id:
(h) Relationship with the security holder:

3. IN CASE NOMINEE IS A MINOR--
(a) Date of birth:
(b) Date of attaining majority
(c) Name of guardian:
(d) Address of guardian:

4. PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE IN CASE MINOR NOMINEE DIES BEFORE
ATTAINING AGE OF MAJORITY -

{a) Name:

(b) Date of Birth:

(c) Father’s/Mother’s/Spouse’s name:
(d) Occupation:



Name of the Security Holder(s)

Signatures:

(e) Nationality:

(f) Address:

(g) E-mail id:

(h) Relationship with the security holder:
(i) Relationship with the minor nominee:

Name;
Address:

Witness with name and address:

Instructions:

1.

2.

el

10.

Il
2.

14.

Please read the instructions given below very carefully and follow the same to the letter. If the
form is not filled as per instructions, the same will be rejected.

The nomination can be made by individuals only. Non individuals inchuding society, trust,
body corporate, partnership firm, Karta of Hindu Undivided Family, holder of power of
attorney cannot nominate. If the Shares are held jointly all joint holders shall sign (as per the
specimen registered with the Company) the nomination form.

A minor can be nominated by a holder of Shares and in that event the name and address of the
Guardian shall be given by the holder.

The nominee shall not be a trust, society, body corporate, partnership firm, Karta of Hindu
Undivided Family, or a power of attorney holder. A non-resident Indian can be a nominee on
re-patriable basis.

Transfer of Shares in favour of a nominee shall be a valid discharge by a Company against the
legal heir(s).

Only one person can be nominated for a given folio.

Details of all holders in a folio need to be filled; else the request will be rejected.

The nomination will be registered only when it is complete in all respects including the
signature of (a) all registered holders (as per specimen lodged with the Company) and (b) the
nominee.

Whenever the Shares in the given folio are entirely transferred or dematerialised, then this
nomination will stand rescinded.

Upon receipt of a duly executed nomination form, the Registrars & Transfer Agent of the
Company will register the form and allot a registration number. The registration number and
folio no. should be quoted by the nominee in all future correspondence.

The nomination can be varied or cancelled by executing fresh nomination form.

The Company will not entertain any claims other than those of a registered nominee, unless so
directed by a Court.

. The intimation regarding nomination / nomination form shall be filed in duplicate with the

Registrars & Transfer Agents of the Company who will return one copy thereof to the
Shareholders.

For shares held in dematerialized mode, nomination is required to be filed with the Depository
Participant in their prescribed form.



PROXY FORM
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

CIN : U40100GJ2010PLC060502

Name of the Company: WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMITED

Registered Office : Welspun City, Village Versamedi, Taluka Anjar, Dist. Kutch, Gujarat, Pin —
370110, India. Board No.: 491 2836 661111, Fax No. -+ 91 2836 279010, Email :
CompanvSecretary WIL@welspun.com Website: hitp://www.welspuncaptivepower.com/

Corporate Office : Welspun House, 6" Floor, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel
(West), Mumbai ~ 400013. Board : +91 -22-66136000 Fax: +91-22-2490 8020

Name of the member (5s) :

Registered Address :

E-mail Id:

Folio No / Client ID

DP ID

I/ We being the member(s) of Equity Shares of the above
named company, hereby appoint :

1. Name) :

Address :

E-mail Id:




Signature : ;

or failing him

2. Name):

Address :

E-mail Id:

Signature : :
or failing him

3. Name):

Address :

E-mail Id:

Signature :

as my / our proxy attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on August 14, 2018 at 03.30 p.m. at the Registered
Office of the Company at Welspun City, Village Versamedi, Taluka Anjar, Dist. Kutch, Gujarat —
370110 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolutio | Subject of the Resolution Voting
n No. For Against
1 Consider and adopt Audited Financial Statements

(standalone), report of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon.

2 Re-appointment of Mr. Atul Wahi as a director of the
Company, liable to retire by rotation.

4 Ratification of appointment of S R B C & CO LLP
(having Firm Registration Number

324982E/E300003), as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company




Ratification of remuneration payable to Cost Auditor.

5 Appointment of Ms. Mala Todarwal as an
independent director.

Signed this ........ dayof ............... 2018.
Affix
Re. 1
Revenue
stamp
Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy Holder(s) : 1) 2)




Note:

1)

2)

3)

4)

Please complete all the details including details of member(s) in the above Box before
submission.

It is optional to put “X” in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the
Box. If you leave the “For” or “Against” column blank against any or all Resolutions, your
Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/ she thinks appropriate.

A proxy can act on behalf of such number of member or members not exceeding 50 and
holding in aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company.
Provided that a member holding more than 10%, of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person
shall not act as proxy for any other person or sharcholder.

The Form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.



WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMITED
CIN : U40100GJ2010PLC060502

Registered Office : Welspun City, Village Versamedi, Taluka Anjar, Dist. Kutch, Gujarat, Pin —
370110, India. Board No.: +91 2836 661111, Fax No. + 91 2836 279010, Email :
CompanySecretary WIL@welspun.com Website: hitp://www.welspuncaptivepower.cony/

Corporate Office : Welspun House, 6th Floor, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel
(West), Mumbai — 400013. Board : +91 -22-66136000 Fax: +91-22-2490 8021

E-mail Registration-Cum-Consent Form

To,

The Company Secretary,

Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited,
Welspun City, Village Versamedi,

Taluka Anjar, Dist. Kutch, Gujarat, Pin — 370110

I/ we the members of the Company do hereby request you to kindly register/ update my e-mail
address with the Company. I/ We, do hereby agree and authorize the Company to send me/ us all
the communications in electronic mode at the e-mail address mentioned below. Please register the
below mentioned e-mail address / mobile number for sending communication through e-mail/
mobile.

Folio No. | : DPp  -: Client ID
1D

Name of the Registered Holder (1%

Name of the joint holder(s)

Registered Address




Pin:

Mobile Nos. (to be registered)

E-mail Id (to be registered)

Signature of the Shareholder(s)*

* Signature of all the shareholders is required in case of joint holding.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,
WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 8" Annual Report and audited statement of
accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2018.

1. Financial Results:

Rs. Million
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017]
Revenue from Operations 3634.85 2,088.17
Other Income 25.85 67.81
Total Revenue 3660.70 2,155.08
Expenditure 2835.28 2,221.74
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and Tax 825.42 (65.76)
Exceptional items (Net) 0.00 357.33
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 825.42 291.57
Income Tax Expenses 284.90 100.65
Profit/( Loss) after Tax 540.52 190.92
Earnings per share (Basic & Diluted) 18.30 6.46

2. Performance:

During the year under review, your Company’s total revenue was Rs. 3,634.85 million i.e.
74.07% higher than the previous year. Profit before tax was Rs. 825.42 million i.e. 183.07%
higher than the previous year. Profit for the year is Rs. 540.52 million i.e. 183.05% higher
than the previous year. Your Company has been continuously striving to increase its
efficiency and productivity.

3. Reserves & Dividend:

Considering the current financial year situations, the directors recommend to plough back
profit eamed during the period for further strengthening the business and hence, do not
recommend any dividend.

Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited

Welspun House, 6th Fioor, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (West), Mumbai 400 013, India.
T:+9122 6613 6000 / 2490 8000 F:+9122 2490 8020

E-mail : companysecretary_wil@welspun.com Website : www.welspuncaptivepower.com

Registered Address: Welspun City, Village Versamedi, Taluka Anjar, District Kutch, Gujarat 370 110, India.
T:+912836 279051 /56 F:+912836 273050

Corporate identity Number: U40100GJ2010PLCO60502



4. Auditors;

(i)

(i)

Statutory Auditors:

Your Company’s Auditors, S R B C & CO LLP, who were appointed up to the
conclusion of the 12" Annual General Meeting subject to ratification by the Members of
your Company at every Annual General Meeting, have given their consent to continue to
act as the Statutory Auditors of your Company for the remaining tenure. The Auditors
are holding a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Members are requested to ratify their appointment as the
Auditors of your Company by passing an ordinary resolution under Section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

The Auditors’ observation read with Notes to Accounts are self-explanatory and
therefore do not call for any comment.

Cost Auditors:

As per Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act read with
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of your Company
has reappointed M/s. Kiran J. Mehta, Cost Accountants as the Cost Auditors of your
Company for FY 2018-19 on the recommendations made by the Audit Committee.

Members are requested to ratify their remuneration by passing an ordinary resolution in
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

(ifi) Secretarial Auditor:

The Secretarial Audit Report for the FY 2017-18 is attached herewith as Annexure - 2 to
this Report and it does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Remuneration) Rules, 2014, your
Company has appointed Uday Sohoni, Practicing Company Secretary, as the Secretarial
Auditor of your Company for the FY 2018-19.

5. Share Capital:

During the year, no share with differential voting rights was issued by your Company nor did
your Company issue any equity share as sweat equity share and no stock options where
issued to the employees of your Company.

6. Listing with the Stock Exchanges:

Your Company’s Non-Convertible Debentures are listed on The National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (NSE). Annual listing fees for the FY 2018-19 have been paid to NSE,



7. Finance:

(@

(ii)

8. Bo

Non-Convertible Debentures & Credit Rating:

During the year, your Company has redeemed debentures for an amount of Rs. 22 Crore
carrying coupoen rate 9.84% p.a. on March 28, 2018.

During the year, your Company’s long term issuer rating of “AA“ of debentures was
upgraded by Credit Analysis & Research Limited (CARE) to “AA-". Further, your
Company’s short term issuer rating of “A2+” was reaffirmed by CARE.

Public Deposits:
Your Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of the Chapter V of the
Companies Act, 2013, Further, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposit

was outstanding as at the end of the year under Report.

ard of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel:

Your Company’s Board comprises of mix of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. Except
the independent directors, all other directors are liable to retire by rotation as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. None of the Directors have any inter-se relationship
amongst each other.

i. Directors Retiring by Rotation:

ii.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act and the Articles of
Association of your Company, Atul Kumar Wahi (DIN: 07558176) is retiring by rotation
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has been recommended for
his re-appointment.

The Board has recommended his re-appointment. There were no other appointments /
resignation of Directors during the year under review.

Appointment/Resignation of Director / Key Managerial Personnel:

Since the last Report, the following changes took place in the Board of Directors of the
Company:

» Resignation of Varun Batra as Company Secretary w.e.f. April 29, 2017;

e Resignation of Malay Mahanii as Whole-time Director and Chief Financial Officer
w.e.f May 11, 2017;

o Appointment of Dinesh Jain as Chief Executive officer and Chief Financial Officer
w.e.f. May 11, 2017 and

e Appointment of Shashikant Thorat as Company Secretary w.e.f. October 26, 2017.

There were no other appointments / resignation of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel
during the year under review.



iil.

Number of Meetings & Attendance:

Regular meetings of the Board are held to discuss and decide on various business policies,
strategies and other businesses. The Board met Eight (8) times during the FY 2017-2018.

The detajled information on the meetings of the Board is as under:

Name of the Director Category | Board No. of other Member /
Meeting | Attendan Directorship Chairman in
) ce at the | (as last declared | No. of Board/
Attende Last to the Company) | Committees
d during AGM including
the Year other
2017-18 Companies
(as last
declared to
the
Company)®@
Pu i Pvt | Other
b. Body
Corp
orate
(1) Devendra Patil Director 8/8 Yes 31 12 2 -
(2) Malay Mahanti* Whole 2/2 - #
Time
Director &
Chief
Financial
Officer
(3) Ms. Dipali Goenka Director 7/8 No 6 4 13 -
(4) K H Viswanathan Independe 8/8 Yes 6 - - 3C, 5M
nt Director
(5) Atul Kumar Wahi Director 2/6 No 1 1 - -
(6) Ms. Revathy Ashok | Independe 8/8 Yes 2 - 2C, SM
nt Director

* Malay Mahanti has resigned from the Board of the Company with effect from May 11,
2017 respectively and hence, details of his directorships and membership of Committees

are not given.

Dates of the meeting: April 20, 2017, April 25, 2017, July 24, 2017, August 07, 2017,
October 26, 2017, November 08, 2017, February 02, 2018 and February 27, 2018.

In addition to the above, a meeting of the Independent Directors was held on March 23,
2018 in compliance with the Section 149(8) read with Schedule V to the Companies Act,

2013.



iv.

vi.

vii.

Declaration by an Independent Director(s):

The independent directors have individually declared to the Board that they meet the
criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 at the
time of their respective appointment and there is no change in the circumstances as on the
date of this report which may affect their status as an independent director.

Directors’ Evaluation:

In compliance with the Act and SEBI Regulations 20135, the Board of Directors, as per the
process recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has evaluated the
effectiveness of the Board, its Committees and Directors. The evaluation process invited
graded responses to a structured questionnaire, which was largely in line with the SEBI
Guidance Note on Board Evaluation, for each aspect of the evaluation. All the results were
satisfactory.

Familiarization program for Independent Director(s):

The familiarization program aims to provide the Independent Directors with the scenario
within the industry, the socio-economic environment in which the Company operates, the
business model, the operational and financial performance of the Company, significant
development so as to enable them to take well-informed decisions in timely manner. The
familiarization programme also seeks to update the Directors on the roles, responsibilities,
rights and duties under the Act and other statutes.

The policy on Company’s familiarization programme for Independent Directors is hosted
on your Company's website and a web link thereto is:
http://www.welspuncaptivepower.com/.

Committee of the Board:
(a) Audit Committee:

Terms of Reference: The terms of reference stipulated by the Board of Directors to the
Audit Committee are as contained under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Committee comprises of 3 (Three) Directors having ability to read and understand
the financial statements. 10 meetings of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
were held during the financial year 2017-18. The Composition of the committee and the
attendance of the members is given as under:

Name of the Member Member/ Number of Meetings
Chairman Attended

K H Viswanathan Chainman 10/10

Devendra Patil Member 8/8

Malay Mahanti* Member 2/2

Ms. Revathy Ashok ' Member 9/10

* Mr. Malay Mahanti resigned w.e.f. May 11, 2017.



The Company Secretary Shashikant Thorat acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted/approved by the
Board.

(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Terms of reference: To recommend appointment of, and remuneration to, Managerial
Personnel and review thereof from time to time.

The Committee comprises of 3 (Three) Directors. The Committee met 3 times during
the year. The Composition of Committee and attendance of the members is given

hereunder:
Name of the Member Member/ Chairman Number of Meetings
Attended
K H Viswanathan Chairman 3/3
Devendra Patil Member 3/3
Ms. Revathy Ashok Member 3/3

The Company Secretary Shashikant Thorat acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy: The Company follows a policy on
remuneration of directors and senior management employees and the salient features
thereof are as under:

Appointment of Directors:

o While identifying persons who may be appointed as director(s), the Committee shall
consider business of the Company, strength, weakness, opportunity and threats to
Company’s business, existing composition of the board of directors, diversity, skills,
expertise of existing directors and, background, skills, expertise, reputation and
qualification possessed by the person being considered, specific requirements under
the Act, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and any other laws as to composition of the Board.

While identifying persons who may be appointed as independent directors, the
Committee shall review their qualifications and suitability to ensure that such
candidates will be able to function as directors ‘Independently’ and void of any
conflict of interest, obligations, pressure from other Board members, KIMPs, senior
management and other persons associated with the Company.



Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management
Personnel:

o The Non- Executive Directors including independent directors may receive
remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board or Comnititee thereof.
Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed Rs. 100,000 per meeting of
the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central
Government from time to time.

The Non-Executive directors shall not be eligible for any remuneration /
commission, unless specifically approved by the Board of Directors on
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and by the
shareholders. The Non-Executive Directors of the Company did not entered into any
pecuniary transactions with the Company.

o The remuneration to Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management Personnel at the time of appointment shall be mutually agreed. The
Committee shall consider industry indicators, requirements of role, qualification and
experience of candidate, expected contribution of executive to the profitability
challenges specific to the Company and such other matters as the Committee may
deem fit. The remuneration must motivate individuals to achieve benchmarks which
must be aligned to the vision of the Company. The management shall pericdically
find out the remuneration scale prevalent in the industry / peer group to the extent
possible to find out if there is a need for revision in remuneration for retaining the
talent. The Non-Executive Directors may be paid commission after complying with
required provisions of the Act. Besides, the Committee shall take into consideration
performance, of the concerned executive as well as the Company, the growth of
business, profitability, Company’s business plan and critical role played / initiatives
taken while considering pay hike / increment to the concerned executives.

(¢) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

In accordance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”™) Committee. The
Board of Directors of your Company has approved a CSR Policy which is hosted on
your Company’s website and a web link thereto is:
http://www.welspuncaptivepower.com/userfiles/file/CSR%20Policy.pdf.

The key philosophy of all CSR initiatives of the Company is enshrined in the three E’s
which have become guiding principles of our CSR initiatives — Education,
Empowerment of Women and Environment & Health.

Disclosures as required under Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure — 4 to this Report.

Terms of reference: To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Policy indicating activities to be undertaken by the Company in
compliance with provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder.



9.

10.

11.

12.

Composition of the Committee: The Committee comprises of 3 (Three) members. K H
Viswanthan, Devendra Patil and Ms. Dipali Goenka. The Chairman of the Committee is
an Independent Director. The Committee met 2 (Two) times during the year.

The Company Secretary Shashikant Thorat acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption: Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo:

Since the Company is not a manufacturing unit, the above particulars are not applicable.
Registrar and Transfer Agent:

The Company has appointed Registrar and Transfer Agent to handle the share /debenture
transfer work and to resolve the complaints of shareholders/ debenture holders. Name,
address and telephone number of Registrar and Transfer Agent is given hereunder:

M/s. Purva Sharegistry(India) Private Limited
Unit: Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited
9 Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt. J .R. Boricha Marg,
Opp. Kasturba Hospital Lane, Lower Parel (E)
Mumbai 400 011 Email - busicomp@gmail.com
Tel. No.: +91-22-23012518 / 23016761

Debenture & Debenture Trustee:

The Secured Non-Convertible Debentures issued by the Company are listed on NSE with
the following identification numbers:

NSE Scrip Code ISIN Nos

WCPG19 INE667007032

Debenture Trustee:

SBICAP Trustee Company Limited
Apeejay House, 6th Floor,

West Wing, 3, Dinshaw Vachha Road,
Churchgate, Mumbai — 400 020

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements made with Related Parties:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the year under report were on an
arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There were no materially
significant related party transactions made by your Company with Promoters, Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict
with the interest of your Company at large. All related party transactions were entered into
because of mutual need and to serve mutual interest. Particulars of contracts or
arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
in the prescribed Form AOC-2, are given in Annexure- 3 to this Report. The Audit
Committee has given its omnibus approval which is valid for one financial year. Your
Company’s policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is hosted on
your Company’s website and a web link thereto is:
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17.

18.

hitp://www.welspuncaptivepower.comy/userfiles/file/Related%620Partv%20Policy%20{ Modi

fied).pdf

The details of the related party transactions as required under IND AS 24 are set out in Note
27 to the Standalone financial statements forming part of this Report.

Loans, gnarantees and investments:

Details of Loans given, Investments made, Guarantees given and Securities provided as
covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are given in the notes to the
financial statements, if any.

Vigil Mechanism for Directors and Employees:

Your Company is committed to highest standards of ethical, moral and legal business
conduct. Accordingly, the Board of Directors has formulated Whistle Blower Policy and
Vigil Mechanism for its directors and employees and any director or employee may make
protected disclosures to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. No personnel have been
denied access to the Audit Committee.

Risk management:

The Company has a risk management framework to inform the Board Members about the
risk assessment and minimization procedures and periodical review to ensure that executive
management controls risk by means of a properly designed framework. The Audit
Committee is kept apprised of the proceedings of the Risk Management Committee and also
apprised about the risk management framework.

Details of Remuneration to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
A] Details of the employee of your Company as required pursuant to Rule 5(2) of  the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are

given below:

There are no employees eligible as per the requirement of Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

B] Details of Remuneration to Directors: Refer to Annexure - 1 to this Report.
Extract of the Annual Return:

An extract of the annual return in Form MGT-9 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 is attached to this report as Annexure-1.

Internal controls:

Your Company has adequate internal control system, which is commensurate with the size,
scale and complexity of its operations. Your Company has designed and implemented a
process driven framework for Internal Financial Control (“IFC”) within the meaning of the
explanation of Section 134(5)(e) of the Act and other relevant statutes applicable to your
Company.
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20.

Your Company has well-documented Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for various
processes which are periodically reviewed for changes warranted by business needs. The
Internal Auditors continuously monitor the efficiency of the internal controls / compliance
with the SOPs with the objective of providing to the Audit Committee and the Board of
Directors, an independent, objective and reasonable assurance of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the organisation’s risk management, control and governance processes.

For the year ended March 31, 2018, the Board is of the opinion that your Company has
sound IFC commensurate with the nature of its business operations; wherein adequate
controls are in place and operating effectively and no material weakness exists. Your
Company has a process in place to continuously monitor existing contrels and identify gaps
and implement new and / or improved controls wherever the effect of such gaps would have
a material effect on your Company’s operation.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) & 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your directors hereby
confirm that:

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2018,
the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

b. the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the Company for the FY 2017-18;

¢. the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d. the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e. being a listed company, the directors had laid down intemal financial controls to be
followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were
operating effectively; and

f. the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Miscellaneous:

During the year, there was no change in the general nature of business of your Company.
No material changes or commitments has occurred which would have affected the financial
position of your Company between the end of the financial vear to which the financial
statements relate and the date of the report. No significant and material order was passed by
the regulators or courts or tribunals which would have impacted the going concemn status
and your Company’s operations in future. No amount was required to be transferred to
General Reserve. The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture and associate
company; Further, based on the Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual
Harassment of women at workplace, the Internal Complaints Committee for each locations
of your Company informed that no case of sexual harassments was reported during the year
under review. Your Company has not made any provision of money for the purchase of, or
subscription for, shares in your Company or its holding Company, to be Leld by or for the
benefit of the employees of your Company and hence the disclosure as required under Rule
16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is not required.
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7
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Date: May 14, 2018 Director Director
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Annexure -1
Form No. MGT -9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2018

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I

IL.

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

il

iil.

v,

V1.

vil.

CIN :- U40100GJ2010PLC060502

Registration Date : April 30, 2010

Name of the Company : Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited

Category / Sub Category of the Company : Public Company

Address of the registered office and contact details: Welspun City, Village
Versamedi, Taluka Anjar. Dist. Kutch, Gujarat-370110.
Contact: The Company Secretary, Tel. No. 022-66136000/66136409;

email id: companysecretary wil@welspun.com.

Whether listed company: Yes (Only Debentures are listed)

Name, address and contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any: Purva
Sharegistry (India) Private Limited.

Address: Unit no. 9 Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt. J .R. Boricha Marg, Opp. Kasturba
Hospital Lane, Lower Parel (E) Mumbai 400 011

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company

shall be stated:-
Sr. | Name and description of main | NIC code of the % to total
No. products / services product / service | turnover of the
company.
1 Electricity 3510 01.48%




III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sr. Name And Address Of CIN/ GLN Holding / % of Applicable
No The Company Subsidiary / Shares Section
Associate Held
1 | Prasert Multiventure | U51901MH2017PTC291 | Holding (with 0.00% 2(46)
Private Limited 358 effect from (%
0 March 31, holding in
Welspun House, 7% Floor, 2017) Welspun
Kamala Mills Compound, Indi
Senapati Bapat Marg, o 1a
Lower Parel, Mumbai — Limited —
400013 67.59%)
2 | Welspun India Limited L17110GJ1985PLC0332 Holding 77.00% 2(46)
71
Welspun City, Village
Versamedi, District Kutch,
Taluka Anjar, Gujarat —
370110
IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN
i. Category-wise share holding
Sr | Category No. of shares held at the beginning of No. of shares held at the end of the year %
No of the year cha
Sharehold nge
er duri
ng
the
year
Number of | Numbe | Total % of | Number of | Numbe Total % of
shares held rof number | total shares held r of number | total
in shares of share in shares | of shares | share
demateriali | heldin | shares ) dematerializ | held in )
zed form | Physic ed form Physica
al form 1 form
(A) | Sharehold
ing of
Promoter
and
Promoter
Group
1 Indian
(a) | Individuals - 4 4 - - 4 4 - -
/ Hindu
Undivided
Family
(b) | Central - - - - - - - - -
Governme
nt/ State




Governme
nt(s)

Bodies
Corporate

29,537,984

29,537,9
84

100.0

29,537,984

295,379,8
40

100.0

0.00

@

Financial
Institutions
/ Banks

(e)

Any
Others(Spe
cify)

Sub
Total(A)(1

)

29,537,984

295,379,
880

100.0

29,537,984

295,379,8
80

100.0

0.00

(B)

Public
shareholdi

ng

Institation
s

(a)

Mutual
Funds

(b)

Banks / FI

(c)

Central
Govt(s)

(@

State
Govi(s)

(e)

Venture
capital
funds

®

Insurance
companies

(g)

FlIls

(h)

Foreign
venture
capital
funds

(1)

Others
(specify)

Sub total
B)(1):-

Non
Institution
5

(a)

Bodies
corp.

Indian

1

Overseas

Individual

(b)

Individual
shareholdi
ng nominal
share
capital
upto Rs. |




lakh

ii. | Individual
shareholde
rs holding
nominal
share ; ) ) . ) ) ) ) )
capital in
excess of
Rs. 1 lakh
(c) | Others
(specify) ) i ) ) ) ) i} i} }
Sub Total ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
B)2)
Total
public
shareholdi
ng (B) = i
B)(1)+(B)
)
iii.
(C) | shares held
by
Custodian - - - - - - -
for GDRs
& ADRs
Grand total | 29,537,984 4 | 295,379, | 100.0 29,537,984 4 | 295,379,8 | 100.0 | 0.00
(A+B+C) 880 0 840 0
ii. Shareholding of Promoters
Sr | Shareholder’s name | Shareholding at the beginning | Shareholding at the end of the %
N of the year year chang
o No. of % of % of No. of % of %of ein
shares total shares shares total shares | sharch
shares | pledged shares of | pledg | olding
of the / the ed/ | during
compan | encumb company | encu the
y ered to mbere | year
total dto
shares total
shares
1. | Welspun India 22,744,21 77.00 -1 22,744,221 77.00 -1 0.00
Limited 3 3
2. | Welspun Corp 5,833,499 19.75 -1 5,833,499 19.75 -1 0.00
Limited
3. | Welspun Steel 295468 1.00 - 295468 1.00 - | 0.00
Limited '
4 | Welspun Wasco 664,804 2.25 - 664,804 2.25 - | 0.00
Coatings Private
Limited
Total of Promoters | 29,537,98 | 100.00 - | 29,537,98 100.00 | - 0.00
8 8




iii. Change in Promoters’ shareholding - NOT APPLICABLE

iv. Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters
and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): Not Applicable

v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel : Not Applicable

INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for

payment.
Secured loans | Unsecure Deposits Total
excluding d loans indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the
beginning of the financial
year
i.  Principal Amount 1,100,000,000 - - | 1,100,000,000
ii. Interest due but not paid
iti. Interest accrued but not 620,822 - - 620,822
due
Total (I + ii + iii) 1,100,620,822 - - | 1,100,620,822
change in indebtedness
during the financial year.
e Addition
e Reduction -220,000,000 - - -220,000,000
Net change ~220,000,000 - - | -220,000,000
Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year
i.  Principal Amount 880,000,000 - - 880,000,000
ii. Interest due but not paid
iii. Interest accrued but not 496,658 - - 496,658
due
Total (iHiHiii) 880,496,658 - - 880,496,658

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, whole-time directors and/or Manager: Not

Applicable

B. Remuneration to other directors.

Sr.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Directors

K H Viswanathan

Revathy Ashok

Total amount

1. Independent
Directors

o Fee for attending
board committee
meetings

¢ Commission

232,500

198,500

431,000




e Others, please

specify - - i}
Total (1) 232,500 198,500 431,000
2. Other Non-
Executive Nil Nil Nil
Directors

e Fee for attending
board committee
meetings

e Commission

e Others, please

specify
Total (2) Nil Nil Nil
Total B)=(1+2) 232,500 198,500 431,000
Total Managerial 431,000
Remuneration
(A+B)
Overall Ceiling as 29,094,092
per the Act.

C.REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD/MANAGER/WTD: NIL

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES UNDER
COMPANIES ACT, 2013: NIL
For Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2018 ‘:0 Dipali Goenka Devend-lﬁtil
Director Director

DIN: 00007199 DIN: 00062784



Annexure- 2

Form No. MR -3
[Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

To,

The Members,

WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMITED,
Welspun City, Village Versamedi,

Anjar— 370110,

Gujarat, India.

CIN: U40100GJ2010PLC060502

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER
GENERATION LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31, 2018 (*Audit Period”), complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board - processes and compliance —
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter :

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and retwrns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2018 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 / The Companies Act, 1956 (the Act) and the rules made
thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

(v} The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI ACT"):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(¢} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Sccuritics and Exchange Board of India (Employec Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 notified on October
28, 2014;



(e} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; (No event occurred requiring compliance during the audit period)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; (No event occurred requiring compliance during the audit period) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
(No event occurred requiring compliance during the audit period)

[ have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and

(if)  SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 entered
into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and The National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. as mentioned above.

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non — Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There
was no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda thereon were sent in compliance to the Act, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions were carried out by majority, while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

I, further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

1 further report that during the year under review, the Company has redeemed debentures for an
amount of Rs. 22 Crore carrying coupon rate 9.84% p.a. on March 28, 2018. The Company has
complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Secretarial Standards, and all
other applicable provisions in the process of variation of shares.

Uday Sohoni
Practising Company Secretary
ACS 29359, CP 10916
May 14, 2018
Mumbai



Annexure - 3

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Act including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis.

(a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of Welspun India
relationship
(b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Sale of power and steam
(c) | Duration of the contracts / Perpetual
arrangements/transactions
(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or As may be mutually agreed
transactions including the value, if any periodically considering
prevalent market conditions.
(e) | Date(s) of approval by the Board July 30, 2014
(f) | Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.

Place: Mumbai :
Date: May 14, 2018

For Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited

¥
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Dipali Goenka Devendra Patil

Director Director
DIN: 00007199 DIN: 00062784



Annexure - 4

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. A brief cutline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or
programs:

The Company is not only committed for doing Corporate Social Responsibility but it aims
at creating Corporate Social Value. The CSR vision is enshrined in the 3E’s i.e.:

i) Education;
ii} Empowerment of women; and
iii) Environment & Health.

These 3E’s are implemented through:

e The programs organized by the Trust formed by the Group;

e Tie-ups with Non-Governmental Organizations / Developmental Agencies /
Institutions; and

e Facilitating Government initiatives.

The Company’s CSR Policy is disclosed on the website of the Company, a web-link of
which is as under:

http://www.welspuncaptivepower.com/userfiles/file/CSR%20Policy.pdf

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:

The Committee comprises of 3 non-executive directors as on date of this Report viz. ) K H
Viswanathan — an Independent Director as the Chairman; 2) Devendra Patil - Member; and
3) Ms. Dipali Goenka - Member, Mr. Shashikant Thorat - Company Secretary acts as the
Secretary to the Committee.

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: Rs. 282,555,702/-

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs.
5,651,114/-

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
a. Total amount to be spent for the financial year: Rs. 5,651,114/-
b. Amount unspent, if any: NIL
¢. Manner in which the amount spent / committed during the financial year is detailed
below:



(Rs. in Lakh)

Sr CSR Project Sector in | Project | Amoun Amount Cumulati | Amount
No. or activity which the s or t spent on the | ve exp.up | spent:
identified projectis | progra | Outlay | projects or to the Direct or
covered ms (Budge programs reporting | through
(Locati t) (Sub-heads: period implemen
on) project (1) Direct ting
or expenditure agency
progra | on projects
ms wise | or programs
(Rs. in 2)
Lakh) | Overheads)
1 | Scholarships to | Promoting | Vapi, 24.34 | Direct
girls hostel / Education | Gujarat Expenditure
infrastructure
support/
donation
various trusts
and GCSRA
2 | Donation given | Empowerm | Vapi, 9.07 | Direct
to Samuhik ent of Guyjarat Expenditure
vivah/ Socially
Expenditure for | backward
Model Village/ 56.61 | Through
Malnutrition — implement
Navchetna ing agency
Project
3 | RO Water Plant | Promoting | Vapi, 23.02 | Direct
installation / health care | Gujarat Expenditure
Mobile including
healthcare preventing
services / healthcare
Donation to
Sahay
foundation /
Sanitary napkin
making project
/ Poster for
emergency
response centre
Total Direct Expenditure 56.61
Staff salaries and overheads 1.50
Grand Total 57.11

It is hereby confirmed by and on behalf of the CSR Committee that the implementation and
monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

K H Viswanathan
Chairman of CSR Committee

DIN: 00391263

May 14, 2018
Mumbai

7~
\.y Dipali Goenka

Director

LYl

Devendra
Director

atil

DIN: 00007199

DIN: 00062784
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Chartered Accountants Dadar (West)

Mumbai - 400 028, India

Tel 1 +91 22 6192 0000
Fax :+91 22 6192 1000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited

Report on the Ind AS financiat statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financiai statements of Welspun Captive Power
Generation Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018,
Lhe Statement of Profit and L.oss, including the Statement of Other comprehensive income, the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as the “Ind AS financial statements™).

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
siatements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended. This responsibility includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, impiementation and mainienance of adequate internal financial control that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audif to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ind AS financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtfain audift evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due fo fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as
well as evaluating the overali presentation of the Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

SRBCLCOLLP, 3 Limiled Liabibiy Partnersbip with LLIP 1dentsty No AAB-43:8
Reqd Oftice : 22, £amac Stree?. Block O, 3rd Flogr Kelkata 700 G146
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view In conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, its profit and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017, included in
these Ind AS financlal statements, have been audifed by the predecessor auditor who expressed
an unmodified opinion on those Ind AS financial statements on April 25, 2017.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2016 ("the Crder') issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure 1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

() In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statemenis comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) Onthe basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, ncne of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2018, from being appeinted as a director In terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial conirols over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer fo our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

() With respect to the other matters to be Included In the Audltor's Report In accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;
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ii. The Company has long term contracts as at March 31, 2018 for which there were no
material foreseeable losses. The Company did not have long-term derivative contracts
as at March 31, 2018,

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accounfants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra

Partner

Membership Number: 110759
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2018

X
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Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph 1 of the section on "Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited

m (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title
deeds of immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment / fixed
assets are held in the name of the company.

(i The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such physical verification. Inventories lying with third parties have been
confirmed by them as at March 31, 2018 and no material discrepancies were noticed
in respect of such confirmations.

i) According to the information and explanations given o us, the Company has not
granted any leans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register mainfained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(lii)(@), (b) and () of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

v In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no leans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisicns
of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not
commented upon.

) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76
of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable,

{vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
fo the rules made by the Cenfral Government for the maintenance of cost records
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the electricity
generation, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records
have heen made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination
of the same.

{vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues inciuding provident fund, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
custom, dufy of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance
are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of
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(viii)

(ix)

0

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

xv)

(]

custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income
tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to debenture
helders. The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing dues in respect
of a financiatl institution or bank or to government during the year,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer
/ debt instruments) and term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable
to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud on the

company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, no
managerial remuneration has been paid / provided during the year and hence the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefcre, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the detaiis have been disclosed in the notes o the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given tc us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet, the company has not made any preferentiai
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv)
are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given. by the management, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given o us, the provisions of section
A45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Partner
Membership Number: 110759
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: May 14, 2018
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the financial statements of
Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“"the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controis over financial reporting of Welspun Captive Power
Generation Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal controf stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities in¢clude the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efticient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of refiable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and
the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controis system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls aver financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, materia!l misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject fo the risk that the
internal financial control over financia! reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financiat reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

ForSRBC &COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra

Partner

Membership Number: 110759
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2018




As At As At
Motes _March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
(Rs. million} {Rs. miliion)

ASSETS
HNon-current assets
Froperly, plant and equipment 3 1,966.42 2,289.54
Capital work-in-progress 3 0.00 0.00
Intangible assets 4 0.18 0.28
Financial assets §{a) 37.33 140
Defered Tax Assets (Net) 6 17.10 116.00
Cther non-current assets 7 3.22 272
Tetal non-current assets 2,046.25 241002
Current assets
Inventories 8 75.41 148,16
Financial assets
(i) Imvestrments 5(b) 252.00 25.00
(ii) Trade Receivables 5{c} 562,02 0.14
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 (d) 9t.47 64.80
(iv) Bank balances other than (jii) above 5 {e} 4.23 3773
{v) Other financial assefs 5 {a} 14.24 480.11
Current tax assets 9 16.29 31.09
Other current assets 10 32.54 18.66
Total current assets 1,048.20 BOS.70
Total assets 3,094 .45 321572
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 11 (a) 295.38 295.38
Other equity
Equity component of compound financial instruments 12 {a) 717.36 717.36
Reserves and surplus 11 {b} 786.84 246.19
Total equity 1,798.58 1,258.93
Liabilities
Non-current [labllities
Financial Liabilities

- Borrowings 12 (a) 1,085.90 1,060.54

- Other financial [abilities 12 (b) 0.08 0.05
Emplayee benefit obligations 13 368 2383
Total non-current ilabilities 1,089.66 1,063.42
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilitias

(i} Borrowings 12 (¢} - 113.60

(1) Trade payables 12 {d} 185.44 134.10

(iii} Other financial liabililies 12(e) 10.73 237.64
Employee benefit obligations 13 081 0.71
Current tax liabilities
Other current liabilities 14 8.23 407.32
Total current llabllities 205.21 883,37
Total liabilities 1,294.87 1,956,738
Total equity and Ilabltities 3098445 3,215.72

WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2018

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompaaying notes.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of the even date.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

ICA] Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra
Partner
Membership No. 110759

Place: Mumnbal
Date: May 14, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dipali Goenka D. K. Patil
Director Drirector
DIiN: 00007199 DCIN: 00062784

! {
% bﬂﬁﬁa’s‘ﬁa};} W hashikant Thorat
CEQ and CFO________—-——-—"" Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Dale: May 14, 2018

N[ ANSS




WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Revenue from cperations
Other Income
Total revenue

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Purchases of sfock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and ameriization expense
Other expenses
Finance costs

Total expenses

Profiti{loss) before exceptlonal Items and tax

Excepticnal ltems
- Insurance Claim for Loss of Profit
Profit before tax

Income Tax Expense

- Cumrent Tax

- Deferred Tax

Total Income Tax Expense

Profitf {loss) for the year

QOther Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 1oss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations
income tax relating {o this item

Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax

Total Comprehensive Income for the vear

Eamings Per Share (Rs.) [Nominal value per share : Rs. 10
{March 31, 2017 : Rs. 10)]

Basic eaming per share

Diluted eaming per share

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

15

16

7

18
19
20
21

5 (a)

22

18
22

M

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
{Rs. mllllon) {Rs. milllon]

3,634 85 2,088.17

25.85 67.81

3,660.70 2,155.89

1,975.95 1,042.22

41.37 155.08

88.53 78.48

297.18 351.52

280.73 314.90

151.53 279,50

2,8636.29 ,221.71
B25.41 {65.72)

- 357.33

825.41 291.61

186.03 62,23

98.83 38.41

284,91 100.65
— 100,96

0.22 0.76
{0.08) {0.26)

0.14 0.49
540.64 194,45

18.30 6.46

18.30 6.46

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred 1o in our report of the even date.

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors

3 o~

Dipall Goenka D. K. Patil
Director Director
per Anll Jobanputra DIN: 00007199 DIN: 00062784

Pariner
Membership No. 110759

hashikant Thorat
Company Secretary

.Q\Cﬁa‘e’smafn\(‘—&‘b——'
e

CEO and CF

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2018

Place: Mumbai
Dale: May 14, 2018




WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

For the Year Endad For the Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
{Rs. miliion) {Rs. milltlon}
A, CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax 825.41 261.61
Adjustments for :
Pepreciation and Amertisation Expanses 297.18 351.52
Loss on scrapping of Fixed Assels 0.00
Unrealised Forelpn Exchange Differences 1.04 6.27
Changes In fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (5.35) (27.36)
Remeasuremen of post employement benefits 0.22 0.76
Dividend and inferest income classified as jnvesting cash flows {15.64) (23.72)
Discounting and bank charges 367 32
Interest and Other Expenses 147.85 276.28
428.97 586.97
QOperating Profit Befora Working Capilal Changes 1,254.38 878.58
Change In operating assets and Habilities :
{increase} in trade receivables {86.79) {133.24)
Increasef {decrease} in trade and other payables and provisions 50.30 74.01
{Increase)! decrease in invenlories 72,75 (45.44)
(Increase) decrease in other current assets {13.88) 27.85
{Increase} in olher non cumrent assels (0.50) {2.69)
Increase in employee benefit cbligation 0.96 0.82
Increase in other non-current Gnancial liabilities 0.03 0.05
Increase / {Decrease }in olher current financial liabilities {6.48) (0.05)
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities {389.10) 402.16
(382.71) 323.57
Cash Geperated from Operations B871.67 4,202,15
Income Tax paid {171.27) {92 .486)
Net Cash inflow from Operating Activitles 700.40 1,109.68
B. CASH FLOW FROM/(USED) IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital Work-in-Progress (6.06) (0.37)
Proceeds from sale of Praperty, Plant and Equipment 10.17 -
Payments for purchase of investmenls (224.09) {22.51)
Interest Received 6.43 2292
Net Cash Inflow used in Investing Activities {213,55) 0.04
C.  CASHFLOW FROM / {USED IN} FINANGING ACTIMITIES
Proceeds from Long-term Bormowings f (Repayment} (220.00) (3.077.87}
Proceeds from Short-term Borrowings / {Repayment) {113.60} 113.60
Interest and Other Finance Expenses (126.59) (279,76}
Nat Cash Flow {used in}! from Flnancing Activities {460.19) {1,244.03)
Net {decrease) / incroase In Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+ B + C) 26.66 {134.30)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at ihe baginning of the year 64.80 199,10
Cash and Cash Equivalents al the end of the year 91.47 64.80
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2666 (134&
1-Apr-17 Cash Flow 31-Mar-18
Borrowings - Non current | Note 12 (a) ] 1,094.23 (216,96} 877.26
Borrowings - Non current [ Note 11 (c) ) 113.60 {113.60) -

Notes :

1. Previcus year's comparalives have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation, wherever applicable.
2. Cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect melhod as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS 7) Statement of Cash Flow.

The abova stalement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Cash Flow referred to in our report of the even date,

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003

For and on be

f of the Board of Directors

g

&

Dipall Goenka
Director

D. K. Patil
Director

par Anll Jobanputra
Partner
Membership Na. 110759

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2018

DIN: 00007188

CEQ and CFO

| §
: Aot L%

Ptace: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2018




WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED ON MARCH 34, 2018

a. Equity Share Capltal

(Rs. million)
Particulars Notes Amount
Balance o9 at March 31, 2016 11 (&) 295,28
Changes in equity share capitat during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2017 11 (@) 295.38
Changes in equity share capital during the yoar -
Balance as at March 31, 2018 11 {a) 295,38
b. Other Equity
(Rs. million)
Equity component of Reserves and Surplus Total Equity
Notes | compound firancial Debenture Retained
instruments Redemption earnings
Reserve
Balance as at March 31, 2018 717.36 §5.00 {0.25) 772.10
Profit for the year 11 {b) - - 190.96 190,96
Other Comprehensive Income - - 0.49 0.49
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 717.36 55.00 191.19 963.55
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve from
relained earnings o) B 4451 (@4.31) )
Balance as at March 31, 20617 717.36 $9.31 146.88 963.55
Equity component of Reserves and Surplus Total Equity
Notes | compound financial | Debenture Retained
instruments Redempticn earnings
Resarve
Balance as at March 34, 2017 717.36 99.31 146.88 "963.55
Profit for the year 11 (B} - - 540,50 540.50
Cther Comprehensive Income - - 0,15 0.15
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 717.36 93.31 E687.53 1,504.20
Transfer to Debenfure Redemption Reserve from 11 (b) - 46.80 (46.80) -
retained eamings
Balance as at March 31, 2018 717.36 146.11 640.73 1,504.20

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
This is statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

ForSREC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAIl Firm registration number; 324982E/£300003

S~

per Anil Jobanputra
Partner
Membership No. 110759

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 14, 2018

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2018

A g

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

i

Dipali Goenka
Director
DIN: 00007199

Dinesh Jzain
CEO and CFO

Place: Mumbai

i (‘—F?/

Date: May 14, 2018

Wt —

D. K. Patil
Director
DiIN: 00062784

ashikant Thorat
Company Secretary




Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

+ Fair_value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’' cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
Income (FVOCI). Movements in the carnying amount are laken through OCI, except for the recognilion
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other income/
expenses as applicable. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using
the effective interest rate method.

» Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other income/ expenses as

applicable in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assefs is included in
other income.

b. Edgquity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, and there will be no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss are recognised in other
gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses})
on equity investments measured at FVYOC! are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 26 details how the Company
determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109

Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables. '

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when
« The Company has transferred the righis to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

» retains the contractual rights fo receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
cbligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset
is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither fransferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset |
_.-continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

ey
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Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

{(v) Income recognition

a. Interest income

Interest Income from debt instruments 1s recognised using the effective interest rate method. Ihe
effective interest rafe is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

b. Dividends

Dividends are recognised in the statement of profit and ioss only when the right to receive payment is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

(vi) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes ouistanding bank
overdraft shown within borrowings in current liabilities in statement of financial position and which are
considered as integral part of the Company's cash management policy.

(vii) Trade receivable

Trade receivable are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Financial labilities
(i) Measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, reduced by transaction costs (in case of financial
liability not at fair value through profit or loss), that are directly atiributable to the issue of financial
liability. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
outflow (including all fees paid, transaction cost, and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition. At the time of initial recognition, there is no financial liability irrevocably designated as
measured at falr value through profit or loss. Liabilities from finance lease agreements are measured
at the lower of fair value of the leased asset or present value of minimum lease payments.

(i) Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the ariginal lability and the recognition of a new liability
The difference in the respective carrying amournts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

(iii) Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are

-+, Subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
\—L"" E QQStS) and the redemption amount is recognlsed in profit or loss over the penod of the borrowmgs using




Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquldity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the coniract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the enlity issues equity instruments to a
creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and
the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end
of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable cn demand on the reporting
date, the entity does not classify the liahility as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period

and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a conseguence
of the breach.

(iv} Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are recognised, initially at fair value, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method.

Compound instrument

Compound financial instrument issued by the Company comprises of compulsorily redeemable non-
convertible preference shares. Compound financial instruments are split into separate equity and
liability components. The liability component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised
at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have discretionary dividend feature/ off market interest
rate. Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component is initiaily
recognised at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole
and the fair value of the liability component. This is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity,
net of income tax effects, and not subsequently re-measured. Any directly atiributable transaction costs
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Interest refated to the liability component of compound instrument is recognised in profit or [oss (Unless
it qualifies for inclusion in the cost of an asset).

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortization, where appropriate.

Derivatives and hedging activities

In order to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange, interest rate, and commodity price risks, the
Company enters into forward, option, swap contracts and other derivative financial instruments. The
Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative confract is entered into and ase
POWER Gf.“,’,




‘Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

General Information

Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited (hereinafter referred as “"the Company”} is a public limited
company incorporated and domiciled in India. The address of its registered office is "Welspun City",
Village Versamedi, Tal. Anjar, Dist Kutch, Gujarat - 370110, India. The Company is engaged in the
business of generation and sale of power and steam mainly to its group companies. The Company has
80 megawatt power generation facility at Anjar, Gujarat.

The Company has its Non-convertible debentures listed on Wholesale Debt Market of National Stock
Exchange w.e.f. April 13, 2016.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the board of directors on May 14, 2018.

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

This notes provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The standalone financial statements has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] (as amended from time to fime). The financial statements have
been prepared on an accrual and going concern basis. The financial statements have been prepared

on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value as stated
in subsequent policies.

1.2 Foreign currency transactions
a} Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The
financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the franslation of monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of initial transaction.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.




‘Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

1.3 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

The Company recognlses revenue when the amount of revenue can be rellably measured, It Is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the transaction wilt flow to the Company and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Company's activities ae described below. The
Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the fype of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of power and steam

Revenue from supply of power and steam is recognised on an accrual basis based on the billing to
customers in accordance with the terms of agreements entered with them.

Sale of coal

Revenue from sale of coal is recognised when the risk and rewards of ownership in goods are
transferred fo the buyer as per the terms of the contract and is recognised net of sales taxes.

1.4 Other Income

Profit on sale of investments is recorded on transfer of title from the Company and is determined
as the difference between the sale price and carrying value of the Investment.

1.5 Income Tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current year's taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the exient it
relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is
recognized in equity or other comprehensive income respectively.

Current income tax

Current tax charge is based on taxable profit for the year. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date
where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
fax assets against current tax liabilities and Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses,
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Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Defetred lax assels and llabllitles are ineasured based on the lax rales lhal are expecled o apply
in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred fax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect changes in probability that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are off-set against each other and the resultant net
amount is presented in the Balance Sheet, if and only when, (a) the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set-off the current income tax assets and Habilities, and {b) the Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax {{MAT') credit entitlement is recognized as a deferred tax asset if it is
probable that MAT credit can be used in future years o reduce the regular tax liability. No deferred
tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of temporary differences which reverse during the tax
holiday period, to the extent the concerned entity’s gross total income is subject to the deduction
during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse after
the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the temporary differences originate

1.7 Exceptional items

Exceptional items comprise items of income and expense, including tax items, that are material in
amount and unlikely to recur and which merit separate disclosure in order to provide an
understanding of the Company’s underlying financial performance.

1.8 Leases
As a lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to
the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
teases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the statement of profit and
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to

increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary
cost increases.

1.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any.

Cost comprises of purchase price (including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates} and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to

the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate assef,
==, @S appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
L% low to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of 7
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and maintenance are charged o the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred. The company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property
plant and equipment as recognized in the financial statements on transition to ind AS, measured as
per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values,
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Assets Estimated Useful Life

Office Equipment 5 years

Furniture and fixfures 10 vears

Computer 3 years except Networking equipments which
are depreciated over useful life of 4 years

Vehicles 10 years

Factory Building 28.5 years

Office Building 30 years

Road, Fencing, efc Ranging between 3 to 5 years

Plant and Machinery is depreciated on written down value method over the useful life ranging befween
9 years to 20 years based on a technical evaluation which is lower than the life prescribed under
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual
values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual values and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, taking into
account commercial and technological obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

(Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss within other incomefexpense.

1.10 Intangible assets

Computer Software

Computer Software with finite useful lives acquired by the Company are measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a
straight-fine basis over the estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method
are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in the
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Amortisation methods and periods

Intangible assets comprise of computer software which is amortized on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life over a period of five years.

1.11 Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
ircumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
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Chartered Accountants Dadar (West)

Mumbai - 400 028, India

Tel 1 +91 22 6192 0000
Fax :+91 22 6192 1000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited

Report on the Ind AS financiat statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financiai statements of Welspun Captive Power
Generation Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018,
Lhe Statement of Profit and L.oss, including the Statement of Other comprehensive income, the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as the “Ind AS financial statements™).

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
siatements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended. This responsibility includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, impiementation and mainienance of adequate internal financial control that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audif to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ind AS financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtfain audift evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due fo fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as
well as evaluating the overali presentation of the Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

SRBCLCOLLP, 3 Limiled Liabibiy Partnersbip with LLIP 1dentsty No AAB-43:8
Reqd Oftice : 22, £amac Stree?. Block O, 3rd Flogr Kelkata 700 G146
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view In conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, its profit and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017, included in
these Ind AS financlal statements, have been audifed by the predecessor auditor who expressed
an unmodified opinion on those Ind AS financial statements on April 25, 2017.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2016 ("the Crder') issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure 1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

() In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statemenis comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) Onthe basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, ncne of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2018, from being appeinted as a director In terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial conirols over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer fo our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

() With respect to the other matters to be Included In the Audltor's Report In accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;
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ii. The Company has long term contracts as at March 31, 2018 for which there were no
material foreseeable losses. The Company did not have long-term derivative contracts
as at March 31, 2018,

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accounfants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra

Partner

Membership Number: 110759
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2018

X
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Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph 1 of the section on "Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited

m (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title
deeds of immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment / fixed
assets are held in the name of the company.

(i The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such physical verification. Inventories lying with third parties have been
confirmed by them as at March 31, 2018 and no material discrepancies were noticed
in respect of such confirmations.

i) According to the information and explanations given o us, the Company has not
granted any leans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register mainfained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(lii)(@), (b) and () of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

v In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no leans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisicns
of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not
commented upon.

) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76
of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable,

{vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
fo the rules made by the Cenfral Government for the maintenance of cost records
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the electricity
generation, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records
have heen made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination
of the same.

{vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues inciuding provident fund, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
custom, dufy of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance
are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of
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(viii)

(ix)

0

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

xv)

(]

custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income
tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to debenture
helders. The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing dues in respect
of a financiatl institution or bank or to government during the year,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer
/ debt instruments) and term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable
to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud on the

company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, no
managerial remuneration has been paid / provided during the year and hence the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefcre, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the detaiis have been disclosed in the notes o the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given tc us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet, the company has not made any preferentiai
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv)
are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given. by the management, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given o us, the provisions of section
A45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Partner
Membership Number: 110759
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: May 14, 2018
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the financial statements of
Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“"the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controis over financial reporting of Welspun Captive Power
Generation Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal controf stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities in¢clude the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efticient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of refiable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and
the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controis system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls aver financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, materia!l misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject fo the risk that the
internal financial control over financia! reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financiat reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

ForSRBC &COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra

Partner

Membership Number: 110759
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2018




As At As At
Motes _March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
(Rs. million} {Rs. miliion)

ASSETS
HNon-current assets
Froperly, plant and equipment 3 1,966.42 2,289.54
Capital work-in-progress 3 0.00 0.00
Intangible assets 4 0.18 0.28
Financial assets §{a) 37.33 140
Defered Tax Assets (Net) 6 17.10 116.00
Cther non-current assets 7 3.22 272
Tetal non-current assets 2,046.25 241002
Current assets
Inventories 8 75.41 148,16
Financial assets
(i) Imvestrments 5(b) 252.00 25.00
(ii) Trade Receivables 5{c} 562,02 0.14
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 (d) 9t.47 64.80
(iv) Bank balances other than (jii) above 5 {e} 4.23 3773
{v) Other financial assefs 5 {a} 14.24 480.11
Current tax assets 9 16.29 31.09
Other current assets 10 32.54 18.66
Total current assets 1,048.20 BOS.70
Total assets 3,094 .45 321572
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 11 (a) 295.38 295.38
Other equity
Equity component of compound financial instruments 12 {a) 717.36 717.36
Reserves and surplus 11 {b} 786.84 246.19
Total equity 1,798.58 1,258.93
Liabilities
Non-current [labllities
Financial Liabilities

- Borrowings 12 (a) 1,085.90 1,060.54

- Other financial [abilities 12 (b) 0.08 0.05
Emplayee benefit obligations 13 368 2383
Total non-current ilabilities 1,089.66 1,063.42
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilitias

(i} Borrowings 12 (¢} - 113.60

(1) Trade payables 12 {d} 185.44 134.10

(iii} Other financial liabililies 12(e) 10.73 237.64
Employee benefit obligations 13 081 0.71
Current tax liabilities
Other current liabilities 14 8.23 407.32
Total current llabllities 205.21 883,37
Total liabilities 1,294.87 1,956,738
Total equity and Ilabltities 3098445 3,215.72

WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2018

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompaaying notes.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of the even date.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

ICA] Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra
Partner
Membership No. 110759

Place: Mumnbal
Date: May 14, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dipali Goenka D. K. Patil
Director Drirector
DIiN: 00007199 DCIN: 00062784

! {
% bﬂﬁﬁa’s‘ﬁa};} W hashikant Thorat
CEQ and CFO________—-——-—"" Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Dale: May 14, 2018
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WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Revenue from cperations
Other Income
Total revenue

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Purchases of sfock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and ameriization expense
Other expenses
Finance costs

Total expenses

Profiti{loss) before exceptlonal Items and tax

Excepticnal ltems
- Insurance Claim for Loss of Profit
Profit before tax

Income Tax Expense

- Cumrent Tax

- Deferred Tax

Total Income Tax Expense

Profitf {loss) for the year

QOther Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 1oss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations
income tax relating {o this item

Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax

Total Comprehensive Income for the vear

Eamings Per Share (Rs.) [Nominal value per share : Rs. 10
{March 31, 2017 : Rs. 10)]

Basic eaming per share

Diluted eaming per share

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

15

16

7

18
19
20
21

5 (a)

22

18
22

M

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
{Rs. mllllon) {Rs. milllon]

3,634 85 2,088.17

25.85 67.81

3,660.70 2,155.89

1,975.95 1,042.22

41.37 155.08

88.53 78.48

297.18 351.52

280.73 314.90

151.53 279,50

2,8636.29 ,221.71
B25.41 {65.72)

- 357.33

825.41 291.61

186.03 62,23

98.83 38.41

284,91 100.65
— 100,96

0.22 0.76
{0.08) {0.26)

0.14 0.49
540.64 194,45

18.30 6.46

18.30 6.46

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred 1o in our report of the even date.

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors

3 o~

Dipall Goenka D. K. Patil
Director Director
per Anll Jobanputra DIN: 00007199 DIN: 00062784

Pariner
Membership No. 110759

hashikant Thorat
Company Secretary

.Q\Cﬁa‘e’smafn\(‘—&‘b——'
e

CEO and CF

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2018

Place: Mumbai
Dale: May 14, 2018




WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

For the Year Endad For the Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
{Rs. miliion) {Rs. milltlon}
A, CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax 825.41 261.61
Adjustments for :
Pepreciation and Amertisation Expanses 297.18 351.52
Loss on scrapping of Fixed Assels 0.00
Unrealised Forelpn Exchange Differences 1.04 6.27
Changes In fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (5.35) (27.36)
Remeasuremen of post employement benefits 0.22 0.76
Dividend and inferest income classified as jnvesting cash flows {15.64) (23.72)
Discounting and bank charges 367 32
Interest and Other Expenses 147.85 276.28
428.97 586.97
QOperating Profit Befora Working Capilal Changes 1,254.38 878.58
Change In operating assets and Habilities :
{increase} in trade receivables {86.79) {133.24)
Increasef {decrease} in trade and other payables and provisions 50.30 74.01
{Increase)! decrease in invenlories 72,75 (45.44)
(Increase) decrease in other current assets {13.88) 27.85
{Increase} in olher non cumrent assels (0.50) {2.69)
Increase in employee benefit cbligation 0.96 0.82
Increase in other non-current Gnancial liabilities 0.03 0.05
Increase / {Decrease }in olher current financial liabilities {6.48) (0.05)
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities {389.10) 402.16
(382.71) 323.57
Cash Geperated from Operations B871.67 4,202,15
Income Tax paid {171.27) {92 .486)
Net Cash inflow from Operating Activitles 700.40 1,109.68
B. CASH FLOW FROM/(USED) IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital Work-in-Progress (6.06) (0.37)
Proceeds from sale of Praperty, Plant and Equipment 10.17 -
Payments for purchase of investmenls (224.09) {22.51)
Interest Received 6.43 2292
Net Cash Inflow used in Investing Activities {213,55) 0.04
C.  CASHFLOW FROM / {USED IN} FINANGING ACTIMITIES
Proceeds from Long-term Bormowings f (Repayment} (220.00) (3.077.87}
Proceeds from Short-term Borrowings / {Repayment) {113.60} 113.60
Interest and Other Finance Expenses (126.59) (279,76}
Nat Cash Flow {used in}! from Flnancing Activities {460.19) {1,244.03)
Net {decrease) / incroase In Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+ B + C) 26.66 {134.30)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at ihe baginning of the year 64.80 199,10
Cash and Cash Equivalents al the end of the year 91.47 64.80
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2666 (134&
1-Apr-17 Cash Flow 31-Mar-18
Borrowings - Non current | Note 12 (a) ] 1,094.23 (216,96} 877.26
Borrowings - Non current [ Note 11 (c) ) 113.60 {113.60) -

Notes :

1. Previcus year's comparalives have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation, wherever applicable.
2. Cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect melhod as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS 7) Statement of Cash Flow.

The abova stalement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Cash Flow referred to in our report of the even date,

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003

For and on be

f of the Board of Directors

g

&

Dipall Goenka
Director

D. K. Patil
Director

par Anll Jobanputra
Partner
Membership Na. 110759

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2018

DIN: 00007188

CEQ and CFO
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Ptace: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2018




WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED ON MARCH 34, 2018

a. Equity Share Capltal

(Rs. million)
Particulars Notes Amount
Balance o9 at March 31, 2016 11 (&) 295,28
Changes in equity share capitat during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2017 11 (@) 295.38
Changes in equity share capital during the yoar -
Balance as at March 31, 2018 11 {a) 295,38
b. Other Equity
(Rs. million)
Equity component of Reserves and Surplus Total Equity
Notes | compound firancial Debenture Retained
instruments Redemption earnings
Reserve
Balance as at March 31, 2018 717.36 §5.00 {0.25) 772.10
Profit for the year 11 {b) - - 190.96 190,96
Other Comprehensive Income - - 0.49 0.49
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 717.36 55.00 191.19 963.55
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve from
relained earnings o) B 4451 (@4.31) )
Balance as at March 31, 20617 717.36 $9.31 146.88 963.55
Equity component of Reserves and Surplus Total Equity
Notes | compound financial | Debenture Retained
instruments Redempticn earnings
Resarve
Balance as at March 34, 2017 717.36 99.31 146.88 "963.55
Profit for the year 11 (B} - - 540,50 540.50
Cther Comprehensive Income - - 0,15 0.15
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 717.36 93.31 E687.53 1,504.20
Transfer to Debenfure Redemption Reserve from 11 (b) - 46.80 (46.80) -
retained eamings
Balance as at March 31, 2018 717.36 146.11 640.73 1,504.20

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
This is statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

ForSREC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAIl Firm registration number; 324982E/£300003

S~

per Anil Jobanputra
Partner
Membership No. 110759

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 14, 2018

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2018

A g

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

i

Dipali Goenka
Director
DIN: 00007199

Dinesh Jzain
CEO and CFO

Place: Mumbai

i (‘—F?/

Date: May 14, 2018

Wt —

D. K. Patil
Director
DiIN: 00062784

ashikant Thorat
Company Secretary




Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

+ Fair_value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’' cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
Income (FVOCI). Movements in the carnying amount are laken through OCI, except for the recognilion
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other income/
expenses as applicable. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using
the effective interest rate method.

» Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other income/ expenses as

applicable in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assefs is included in
other income.

b. Edgquity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, and there will be no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss are recognised in other
gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses})
on equity investments measured at FVYOC! are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 26 details how the Company
determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109

Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables. '

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when
« The Company has transferred the righis to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

» retains the contractual rights fo receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
cbligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset
is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither fransferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset |
_.-continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.
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Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

{(v) Income recognition

a. Interest income

Interest Income from debt instruments 1s recognised using the effective interest rate method. Ihe
effective interest rafe is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

b. Dividends

Dividends are recognised in the statement of profit and ioss only when the right to receive payment is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

(vi) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes ouistanding bank
overdraft shown within borrowings in current liabilities in statement of financial position and which are
considered as integral part of the Company's cash management policy.

(vii) Trade receivable

Trade receivable are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Financial labilities
(i) Measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, reduced by transaction costs (in case of financial
liability not at fair value through profit or loss), that are directly atiributable to the issue of financial
liability. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
outflow (including all fees paid, transaction cost, and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition. At the time of initial recognition, there is no financial liability irrevocably designated as
measured at falr value through profit or loss. Liabilities from finance lease agreements are measured
at the lower of fair value of the leased asset or present value of minimum lease payments.

(i) Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the ariginal lability and the recognition of a new liability
The difference in the respective carrying amournts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

(iii) Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are

-+, Subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
\—L"" E QQStS) and the redemption amount is recognlsed in profit or loss over the penod of the borrowmgs using




Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquldity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the coniract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the enlity issues equity instruments to a
creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and
the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end
of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable cn demand on the reporting
date, the entity does not classify the liahility as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period

and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a conseguence
of the breach.

(iv} Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are recognised, initially at fair value, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method.

Compound instrument

Compound financial instrument issued by the Company comprises of compulsorily redeemable non-
convertible preference shares. Compound financial instruments are split into separate equity and
liability components. The liability component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised
at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have discretionary dividend feature/ off market interest
rate. Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component is initiaily
recognised at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole
and the fair value of the liability component. This is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity,
net of income tax effects, and not subsequently re-measured. Any directly atiributable transaction costs
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Interest refated to the liability component of compound instrument is recognised in profit or [oss (Unless
it qualifies for inclusion in the cost of an asset).

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortization, where appropriate.

Derivatives and hedging activities

In order to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange, interest rate, and commodity price risks, the
Company enters into forward, option, swap contracts and other derivative financial instruments. The
Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative confract is entered into and ase
POWER Gf.“,’,
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General Information

Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited (hereinafter referred as “"the Company”} is a public limited
company incorporated and domiciled in India. The address of its registered office is "Welspun City",
Village Versamedi, Tal. Anjar, Dist Kutch, Gujarat - 370110, India. The Company is engaged in the
business of generation and sale of power and steam mainly to its group companies. The Company has
80 megawatt power generation facility at Anjar, Gujarat.

The Company has its Non-convertible debentures listed on Wholesale Debt Market of National Stock
Exchange w.e.f. April 13, 2016.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the board of directors on May 14, 2018.

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

This notes provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The standalone financial statements has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] (as amended from time to fime). The financial statements have
been prepared on an accrual and going concern basis. The financial statements have been prepared

on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value as stated
in subsequent policies.

1.2 Foreign currency transactions
a} Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The
financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the franslation of monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of initial transaction.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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1.3 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

The Company recognlses revenue when the amount of revenue can be rellably measured, It Is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the transaction wilt flow to the Company and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Company's activities ae described below. The
Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the fype of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of power and steam

Revenue from supply of power and steam is recognised on an accrual basis based on the billing to
customers in accordance with the terms of agreements entered with them.

Sale of coal

Revenue from sale of coal is recognised when the risk and rewards of ownership in goods are
transferred fo the buyer as per the terms of the contract and is recognised net of sales taxes.

1.4 Other Income

Profit on sale of investments is recorded on transfer of title from the Company and is determined
as the difference between the sale price and carrying value of the Investment.

1.5 Income Tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current year's taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the exient it
relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is
recognized in equity or other comprehensive income respectively.

Current income tax

Current tax charge is based on taxable profit for the year. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date
where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
fax assets against current tax liabilities and Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses,




‘Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Defetred lax assels and llabllitles are ineasured based on the lax rales lhal are expecled o apply
in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred fax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect changes in probability that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are off-set against each other and the resultant net
amount is presented in the Balance Sheet, if and only when, (a) the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set-off the current income tax assets and Habilities, and {b) the Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax {{MAT') credit entitlement is recognized as a deferred tax asset if it is
probable that MAT credit can be used in future years o reduce the regular tax liability. No deferred
tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of temporary differences which reverse during the tax
holiday period, to the extent the concerned entity’s gross total income is subject to the deduction
during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse after
the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the temporary differences originate

1.7 Exceptional items

Exceptional items comprise items of income and expense, including tax items, that are material in
amount and unlikely to recur and which merit separate disclosure in order to provide an
understanding of the Company’s underlying financial performance.

1.8 Leases
As a lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to
the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
teases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the statement of profit and
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to

increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary
cost increases.

1.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any.

Cost comprises of purchase price (including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates} and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to

the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate assef,
==, @S appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
L% low to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of 7
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and maintenance are charged o the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred. The company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property
plant and equipment as recognized in the financial statements on transition to ind AS, measured as
per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values,
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Assets Estimated Useful Life

Office Equipment 5 years

Furniture and fixfures 10 vears

Computer 3 years except Networking equipments which
are depreciated over useful life of 4 years

Vehicles 10 years

Factory Building 28.5 years

Office Building 30 years

Road, Fencing, efc Ranging between 3 to 5 years

Plant and Machinery is depreciated on written down value method over the useful life ranging befween
9 years to 20 years based on a technical evaluation which is lower than the life prescribed under
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual
values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual values and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, taking into
account commercial and technological obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

(Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss within other incomefexpense.

1.10 Intangible assets

Computer Software

Computer Software with finite useful lives acquired by the Company are measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a
straight-fine basis over the estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method
are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in the
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Amortisation methods and periods

Intangible assets comprise of computer software which is amortized on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life over a period of five years.

1.11 Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
ircumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
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Note 22 : Income {ax expense

(Rs. million)

a) Statement of Profit and Loss

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Income tax expense

Current Tax

Current Tax on profits for the year. 186.08 62.23
Total current tax expense 186.08 62.23
Deferred Tax
Decrease in deferred tax assets (Refer Note 6) 98.84 38.42
Total deferred tax expensef{benefit) 98.84 38.42
Income tax expense 284.91 100.65
b) Other Comprehensive Income 31-Mar-18 [ 31-Mar-17
Net loss/{gain) on remeasurement of defined benefit plans (0.08) (0.26)
(c) Reconcilition of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by india's tax rate
(Rs. million)
March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017
Profit before tax 825.41 291.61
Tax at the indian tax rate @ 34.61% 285.66 100.92
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 0.88 0.01
Other ltems (1.74) {0.28)
Income Tax Expenses 284.91 100.65
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Note 23 : Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category

WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMITED

{Rs. miilion)
31-Mar-18 I-MarA7
FVPL FVOCGI Amortised cost FVPL FVOCE Amortised cost
Current financial assets
Investments
- Bonds and debentures 252.00 - - - - -
- Mutual funds - - - 25.00 - -
Trade receivables - - 562.02 - - 0.14
Cash and cash equivalenis - - 91.47 - - 64.80
Bank Balances other than above - - 4.23 - - 37.73
Insurance Claim Receivable 4.04 479.12
Fixed deposits with Banks with maturity 37.33 1.40
period more than twelve months
Interest Accrued on Deposils 10.19 0.98
Total financial assets 252.00 - 709.28 25.00 - 584.19
Borrowings 1,086.40 1,395.07
Security Deposits - - 0.05 - - 0.05
Derivative financial liabilities
-Foreign exchange forward contracis - - - 6.27 - “
Trade payables - - 185.44 - - 134.10
Retention money payable - - 10.23 - - 10.44
Total financial liabilities - - 1,282.12 8.27 - 1,539.66
ii) Fair value of Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
(Rs. millicn)
] 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Particulars G g ASITTOOT Fair value COTTY IR AATOUN Fair Value
Financial Assets
Insurance Claim Receivable 4.04 4,04 479.12 479.12
Fixed deposits with Banks with maturity period mare than twelve months 37.33 37.33 1.40 1.40
Interest Accrued on Deposits 10.19 10.19 0.98 0.98
Others 657.72 B657.72 102.68 102.68
Total T09.28 709.28 584.19 584,79
Financial liabilities
9.84% Redeemakble Non-Convertible Debeniures 877.26 887.93 1,094.23 1,118.54
Liability component of compound financial instruments 208.14 281.13 186.94 248.22
Security Deposits 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05
Others 195.67 185.67 144,54 144.54
Total 1,282,183 1,364.79 1,425.76 1,517.35

The carrying amount of trade receivable, trade payable, insurance claim receivable, interest accrued on deposits and bonds, cash and cash equivalents are considered
to be the same as their value, due to their short-term nature.

The fair values for liability component of compound financial instruments are based on discounted cash flow using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3
fair value in fair value hierarchy due to use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk,

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

(iii) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the falr values of the financials instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value
and {b} measured at amoriised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication abeut the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair vaiue, the company has classified its financial instruments inio the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level

follows underneath the table.

(Rs. million}
Finaricial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value - recurring fair value Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
measurements ST A
T N

At March 31, 2018 A2 N
Financial assets N ‘;2' Nz
Bonds & Debentures 5 () 252.00 (O & \= - 252.00
Total financial assets 252.00 ol s - 252.00

=

[

\4‘,\'
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{Re. million)
Assets and tiabilities which are
moacurcd at amertisod cost for which Notos Lovol 1 Loval 2 Lavel 3 Total
fair values are disclosed
At March 31, 2018
Financial assets
Fixed deposiis with Banks with maturity
period more than twelve months 5@ ) 8733 - 3733
Interest Accrued on Deposits §{a) - - 10.18 10.18
Others 5{d),5(c),5(e) - - 657.72 657.72
Insurance Claim Receivable 5{a) - - 4.04 404
Total financial assets - 37.33 671.95 709.28
Financial Liabilities
Security Deposits 11 (b) - - 0.05 0.05

o . .

0.84% Redeemable Non-Convertible 11 (a) 887.93 _ - 887.03
Debentures
?_iability component of compound financial 11(2) . R 28113 281.13
instruments
Trade payables - - 185.44 185.44
Retention money payable - - 10.23 10.23
Total financial liabilities 887.93 - 476.86 1,364.79
Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value - recurring fair value Not Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
measurements otes
At March 31, 2017
Financial assets
Mutual funds 5{b) 25.00 - 25.00
Total financial assets 25.00 - - 25.00
Financial liabilities
Derivatives not designated as hedges:

-Fureign exchange forward contracts 12 (b) - 6.27 6.27
Total financial liabilities - 6.27 - 6.27
Assets and liabilities which are
measured at amortised cost for which Not Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
fair values are disclosed otes
At March 31, 2017
Financial assets
Fixed deposits with Banks with maturity _
period more than twelve months 5(a) 1.40 140
Interest Accrued on Deposits 5(a) - - 0.98 0.98
Others 5(d), 5(c}5(e) - - 102.68 102.68
Insurance Claim Receivable 5(a) - - 479,12 478.12
Total financial assets - 1.40 582.79 584.19
Financial Liabilities
Security Deposits 12 (b) - - 0.05 G.05

o . .
5.84% Redeemable Non-Converiible 12(a) 1.118.54 _ 111854
Debentures
!_iabi(ity component of compound financial 12(a) B B 248,92 24827
instruments
Trade payables 134.10 134.10
Retention money payable 10.44 10.44
1,118.54 - 392,651
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Level 1: This hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, exchange traded funds and mutual funds
that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The
mutual funds are valued using the closing Net Assets Valie (NAV). NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue further units and will redeem such units of
mulual fund to and from the Investors.

Level 2; The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market {such as traded bonds, debentures, government securities and commercial papers)
is determined using Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives Association of India (FIMMDA) inputs and valuation techniques which maximise the use of cbservable
market data and rely as little as possible on enfity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included
inlevel 2,

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on cbservable market data, the instrument is included in leve! 3.

There are ng interal transfers of financial assets and financial liabifities between levels 1, 2 and level 3 during the period. The group's palicy is to recognise transfers into
and transfers out of falr value hierarchy lavsl as at the end of reporting period.

iv) Valuation technique used to determine fair value :
Specific valuation techrigues used to value financiat instruments include:

- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

- the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
- the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

All of the resulting fair value estimates are inciuded in level 2.

v) Valuation processes :

The finance department of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purpases, including
level 3 fair values. This team reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO). Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the CFO, Audit
Committee and the valuation team at least once every three months, in line with the Company's quarterly reporting periods.
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Note 24 : Financial Risk Managemant
Tha Company activities 2re axposed to market nsk, fiquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse elfects on the financial perf: of the ¥ financial such as foreign

exchange forward contracts, foreign currency aplion contracts are entered to hedge certain foreign currency risk axpasures and interast rale swaps to hedge variable interest rate Daivatives are used
{for hedging purposes 2nd nol as trading of specwative instuments.

y

Rigk Expotura aricing from Maasuremant Managemont
Crecit risk Cashand cash equivalants, bade |y oo o natvsis Credit ratings iversification of bank dapasks, cradtlimits
Ligjuikity risk ings and other liabilities Raling cash flow ity of ittad credit lines and ing laciibes

Market sk~  |Future commetcial transactions Cosh Now forecestng Sensitvity

toreign Recogrised financial lizbiities not is Forward foreign exchange contracts
exchange denominated in Indian fupae (INR) s
Marketisk— || ciments in Bonds Sensilivity analysis Portfolic diversification

Security pices

Tha Company's rsk management is camied out by a central reasury dapartment {group treasury) under policies epproved by the Board of Directors. Group lreasury identfias, evaluates and hedges financial fisks in close

caoparation wilh the group's eperating wnits. The Board provides witten pring for ovarai risk o5 well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, creditrisk, use of darvative financial
il and vative financial i and il of excess igquidity,
[A) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equk . 0 camed at d cost and deposits with banks and financia insttiens, as well as eredit exp o i incluhing g
receivabies.
(i} Credit Risk Manzgement
Credit risk rafers {o the risk that a will defautonits igatians resulting in financiat less to the Company. Craditrisk encompasses of bolh, the direct risk of default and the fsk of detedoration of
il Nl a5 wekl as risks. The Company uses other publicly avalable Tinancial information and its own brading records lo rate its major customers. The Company's exposure and the credit ratings of
s parties arg i itared and the value of By 15 spread amongst app: parties. Credit exp: is Had by limits that are reviewed and

approved annualy. Since subsential amourt of receivables of the Company are from its own Subsidiares and Associates credil riskis mitigated

Ageing of Trade recevables s as follons

IRs Mifiipn}
0-30days 31-60 days | 61-90days past | 91-120 days past 121 -180 days past jBeyond 181 days
Notdue TOTAL
pastduss pastduas dues dues dues pastducs
As atMarch 31, 2018 562.00 001 - - 6.01 - - §62.02
Az atMarch 31,2017 204 010 0.01 - - - - 0.14
During the year and previous years, the Company made no wiita-oHs of irade receivables, it does not expact o receive future cash Rows or fes from ion of cash flows previously witten off
{B}Liquidity Risk
Liguidity fiskrefers to the risk thal the Company wil encourter difficulty in meating obligat ith it Hiabifiies that are settied by delivening cash or ather it assefs. The Company es liquidity
fisk by maintaining adaquata resenves, banking Taciities and reserve fng facitties, by i i feracast and actual cash flows, and by matching the matwily profitas of financial assets 2nd fabililies,

(I} Financing arrangements

The group had aecess 1o the Tellowing undrawn bomrowing facilities al tha end of (ha reparing pariod:

{Rs. Milion)
31MarA8 AN-Mard?
Expinng within one year {cash credit, bank overdralt 2nd other facilittes) ) 850 536
TOTAL 650 535
The bank overdrait faciities may be drawn at any Bime and nigy be terminated by the bank without natice.
{li) Maturities of Financial Eabitiittes
The lables below analyse the Company's financial Habiities into relevant malurity ings based on their for:
* afl non desivatva financial kabiftias, and
> netond gross settfed desivative financial foz which the ities are essential for 2n understanding of the timing of the cash flows.
The amounts disclosed in the 1able are the ndiscountad cash
As 3t March 31, 208 [Rs. Mian)
Contractuzl maturities of Less than3 3monthsta 6 | émanthsto1 | Betweendand 2 Betwaen 2 and §
financial Hzbilitles Months manths year yoars years Beyand 6 yoars Totat
Non-derhvatives
Borowings - 050 - a8e G - 209.14 108964
Trade payables 20207 - . . - - 20207
QOther financial lizkilises 19572 - - - - - 19572
Total ivati i 39779 0.50 - 88000 - 209.14 1,487.43
DRarivatives (net soited)
Fuoreign exchange lorward
contracts " N * " " ° -
Total derivative liabilities - - - - -
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As at Karch 31, 2017 {fts. Mitlion)
Contractuat maturities of ioas than 3 Imonthste 6§ Emonthsio 1 | Batweon Tand2 Batwaan 2 and §
finangial tiabllitlas Months months year yaars ynars Boyond 5 yoars Total

Non-derivativoe

Borrowings 147.33 3365 266.69 1,106.87 104.84 £01.59 2.481.07
Trade payables 1410 1L
Cther financial liabifities 10.44 - - - - - 10.44
Total non-darivativa fiabililias 291.87 33,65 286.59 1,106.97 410404 801.58 2,625.61

Darivalives [net setilad]
Foraign exchange forward

contracts 627 = M - - . 6.27
Total derivaliva liabllitios 6.27 - - - - . §.27
€. Hatkst risk
) Furalgn curroncy risk
The Company i li d In foreign fes; 1o rata ions arise: Tha Company uses foreign sumency fonvard contracls to hedge Its risks

associated with foreign curtency Muctuations refating to cerlain firm commilmants, highly ptabable forocast transactions and foraign curzency required al lhe ssifemant dals of certain receivables/payables. The usa af
farelgn eurrency fosward conlracts is gaverned by the Company’s sirategy aprvoved by e Board of Directors, which provids principies on tha use of such fonward coplratle conciston! with tha Gompany's rick
management policy and procodutes.

{a) Foreign currency risk expasura

Ths Company's exposure to forsign currency risk al tha end of Lha raporting period in India Rupess ara a4 follows
(Rs. Hilllon)
H-Kar-18 31-Mar-37
usp EUR uso EUR

Asat

Financial Assats
Trade Receivables - - - -
Others . - - -
Dutivative conlracts - - - -
Farward - - . -

Mot exposure to forefgn cusrency
risk {as=sats)

Financlal labllitios
External commerclal korrowings - 11351
Trade payablas 12.43 19.78
Dstivative contracts - -
Farward - {120.52)

Net exposure to forelgn currency

risk {llabilitias) 1243 - w17 . i

(b) Foralgn currency sansitivity

“The sensilivity of profil o7 {oss to changes in tho exchanga fales arisas meinly from foreign currancy denaminated financial insltuments arises from foreign farward exchange cantracls.

{Rs. Miflion}

tmpact on profit after tax

March Mureh
31, 2048 31, 2017
USO sensitivity
INRAUSD - Increase by 3% (March 31, 2017 « 4%) -0.37 -0.53
INRAUSD - Docrease by 3% (March 31, 2017 - 4%)° 0.37 053

* Helding ali other variables canslanl
Sensitivity analysis is carriad out based on average exchangs rato movament of last 3 years,

[i#} Cash llow and fair valua internst rate risk
Tha Gompany is exposed to interest rals risk basause funds aro barrowed al both fixed and Noaling Intetest rates. Interest rale risk is measuted by using Lhe cash Mlow sansilivily for changss in variable interest rate.

The Company uses & mix of interest rale sensilive financial [nstruments (o manage tha liquidily and fund requirements for its day lo day operations like non-converlible bonds and short lsrm Ioans, Tha risk is
managed by tha Campany by maintaining an appropriate mix betwesn fixsd and Naating rate borrowings.




[a) Interoxt rate risk exposure

The expesute of tha Company’s borrowing te interest rate changes at he end of ths reporting perfod are as follows:

WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIKITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

{Rs, Milliun}
As at Asat
Karch 34, 2018 March 31, 2047
Fixed rale borrowings 1,089.64 1,295.08
Varinbdo fola bonowings - -
Total bozrowings 1,080.64 £,495.08

Sanitivity

Tha Gompany does net have ficaling interest rala barrawing hence sensilivity 2nalysis is nat applicable.

{iH) Prico risk
(a) Exposura

The Group is mainly exposed to the prica risk due to its investment in mutual funds and bends. Tha prica risk arises dus lo uncorlaintios aboul the fulure markst values of Ihesa investmants. In order to manage its
price risk arising from investments In mutual funds, tho Greup diversifies its portfolio in sccordonce with the limits sel by the risk managament palictas, The exposure of Ihe Company's Investiments at the end of lhe

rapailing paticd ara as fellows:

{Rs. Miflion)

i Asat As at
Particul
arieulars March 3%, 2018 | Harch31, 2047

investmant in Mutual Funds - 250
{rwestment in Bonds and G-Sec 252| -
Total borrowlngs 252| 2.50

(b) Sansitivity

Tha lable below summarises the impact of increasesidecreases of 0.25% increasa In price of Mutual Fund / Band.

{Rs. Million)
Impact on prefit before tax
Harch March
31,2018 34, 2017
Increase in pice 0.75% (March 31, 2017 - 0.75% 1 189 0.02
Detrease in prica 0.75% (March 31, 2017 - 0.75% (1.89) {0.02}

" Holding alt other variablas constant

Sensitivily analysis iz carried out bazed on averaga price mavemen! ol last 3 ysars ard #s rend.




WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
Note 25 : Capital Management

{a) Kisk management

- The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in
order 1o support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth. The Company's overall strategy
remains unchanged from previous year.

- The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which include capital
and other strategic investments.

- The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation and other long term borrowings. The Company's
policy is to use short-term and long-term borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements.

- The Company monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

Net debt are long term and short term debis as reduced by cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash and cash equivalents)
and short-term investments. Equity comprises all components excluding other components of equity (which comprises the cash flow
hedges, translation of foreign operations and available-for-sale financial investments).

The Company's strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio within 2:1. The gearing ratios were as follows:
The fellowing table summarizes the capital of the Company:

(Rs. million)
31-Mar-i8 31-Mar-17
Paid up Debt Capital 1,085.91 1,280.54
Net Worth 1,799.58 41,258.93
Net debt to equity ratio 0.60 0.03

{i) Loan covenants

Under the terms as mentioned in the debenture offer agreement, the Company is required to comply with the following financial
covenants:
- the net debt to net worth ratio must not be greater than 2.5 times

- the net debt fo EBITDA ratio must not be greater than 3.0 times

The Company has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting period. As at 31 March 2018:
- Net debt to net worth ratio - 0.60 times
- Net debt to EBITDA - 0,78 times




WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Note 26 : Segment information

(i) Infermation about Primary Business Segment

The Company is exclusively engaged in the business of generation and sale of Power and Steam, which, in the context of Accounting
Standard 108 on Segment Reporting is considered to constitute a single primary segment. Thus, the segment revenue, segment results,
total carrying amount of segment assets, total carrying amount of segment liabilities, total cost incurred to acquire segment assets, total
amount of charge for depreciation during the year are all as reflected in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 and as
on that date,

(i) Information about Secondary Geographical Segments:

The Company is exclusively engaged in sales to customers located in India. Consequently the Company does not have separate reportable
geographical segments for March 2018.

Note 27 : Related party fransactions

(i) Names of related parties and nature of relationship:

(a)

Enterprise where conirol exists

Holding Company Waelspun India Limited

Ultimate Holding Company* Krishiraj Trading Limited (upto September 27, 2016)
MNG Agro Properties Private Limited {with effect from 28 september 2016 and upto March 29,
2017)

Prasert Multiventure Private Limited (with effect from March 30, 2017 till date)

{b) Other Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel or relatives of such personnel exercise significant influence or control and with whom
transactions have taken place during the year
Welspun Corp Limited

Welspun Steel Limited

Welspun Wasco Ceatings Private Limited
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WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Note 28 ; Commitments

{a} Non-cancellable cperating leases

Where the Company is a lessee:
Operating Lease

The Cempany has taken equipments under operating lease where agreements are renewable on a

periodic basis at the oplion of both the lessor and the lessee. The ini

three years.

tial tenure of the lease is generally of

The aggregate rental expenses of all the operating leases for the year are Rs. 1.06 million (Previous Year:
Rs. 0.91 milliorr). The company has no non canceliable operating lease.

Note 29 : Value of Import, calculated on CIF basis

{Rs. million)
Dascription Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31. 2017
Rupees Rupees
Raw Materials 1,226.91 857.03
1,226.91 657.03
Note 30 : Details of Consumption and Purchases
(@) Details of Raw Materials consumed (Rs. mitlion)
Description Year Ended Year Ended
. March 31. 2018 March 31. 2017
Rupees Rupees
Coal 1,975.95 1,042.22
1,975.95 1,042,22
[(s)] Value of Imported and Indigenous Raw Materials and Stores, Spare Parts Consumed and Percentage
(i) Raw Materials (Rs. million})
Description Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
% Rupees % Rupees
Imported 90% 1,772.82 | 97% 1,009.73
Indigencus 10% 203.13 | 3% 32.50
100% 1,975.95 | 100% 1,042.22
(i Traded goods (Rs. mitlion)
Description Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
% Rupees % Rupees
Imported 75% 31.21 | 100% 155.08
Indigenous 25% 10.16 | 0% -
75% 41.37 155.08
(i)  Stéres and Spares Consumed {Rs. million)
Description Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
% Rupees % Rupees
Imported 0% - 0% 0.03
Indigenous 100% 43.06 | 100% 40.89
100% 43.06 | 100% 40.91
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WELSPUN CAPTIVE POWER GENERATION LIMiTED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
Note 31 : Earning per share

(Rs. million)
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Basic and diluted earnings per shara Rupees Rupees
EarningsTier share atributable to the equily holders of the 590 — _.__6 -
company ’ j
Profit for the year 541 191
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the
denotinator in caleulafing  basic and diluted earnings per share
(Number of shares) 29,537,988 29,537,988
Note 32:

The figures for the corresponding pravious year have been regroupedfreclassified wherever necessary, to make them comparable.

Signatures to Notes to financial statements

ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003 % D(A (M
Dipali Goenka D. K, Patil
WWV\/L Director Director
per Anil Jobanputra DIN: 00007199 DIN: 00062784
Partner

Membership No. 110759

Dinesh Jain / hashikant Thorat
CEO and CFO Company Secretary

Place: Mumbati

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2018

Date: May 14, 2018
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